
 

 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Port of Kennewick  

Regular Commission Business Meeting 
Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers and via GoToMeeting 

350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick Washington 
 

February 27, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL  
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approval of Direct Deposit and ePayments February 16, 2024 
B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated February 27, 2024 
C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes February 13, 2024 

 
VI. ACTION ITEM 

A. Vista Field Collaborative Design Process; Resolution 2024-03 (TIM/TOM) 
 

VII. PRESENTATION 
A. Vista Field Lot #15 Proposal; Resolution 2024-04 (AMBER)  

 
VIII. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Oak Street DB-D Fire, David Robison (LARRY/MICHAEL) 
B. Governor’s Smart Communities Award March 12, 2024 (TANA) 
C. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 
D. Non-Scheduled Items  

(LISA/BRIDGETTE/TANA/NICK/LARRY/AMBER/MICHAEL/CAROLYN/TIM/KEN/TOM/SKIP) 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 

PLEASE MUTE YOUR MICROPHONE UNLESS YOU ARE SPEAKING  
AND SILENCE ALL NOISE MAKING DEVICES 

 

Port of Kennewick provides telephonic, video access, and in-person participation options to the public. 
 

To participate by telephone, please call in at:  1-866-899-4679, Access Code:  780-078-957 
Or, join on-line at the following link: https://meet.goto.com/780078957  

 
 

tel:+18668994679,,780078957
https://meet.goto.com/780078957


PORT OF KENNEWICK 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2024 MINUTES 

Page 1 of 4

Commission Meeting recordings, with agenda items linked to corresponding audio, can be found on the 
Port’s website at:  https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/ 

Commission President Skip Novakovich called the Regular Commission Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL 

The following were present: 

Board Members: Skip Novakovich, President  

Staff Members: 

Kenneth Hohenberg, Vice President 
Thomas Moak, Secretary 

Tim Arntzen Chief Executive Officer 
Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy Chief Executive (via telephone) 
Nick Kooiker, Deputy Chief Executive Officer/CFO (via telephone) 
Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate (via telephone) 
Bridgette Scott, Executive Assistant (via telephone)  
Lisa Schumacher, Special Projects Coordinator  
David Phongsa, Marketing/Capital Projects Coordinator (via telephone) 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mr. Arntzen led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
No comments were made. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated January 31, 2024

Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $126,256.48
B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated February 13, 2024

Expense Fund Voucher Number 105611 through 105662 for a grand total of $157,377.92
C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes January 23, 2024
D. Approval of Warrant Register Dated January 25, 2024

Expense Fund Voucher Number 105608 through 105610 for a grand total of $119,034.12

MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to add Item D, Approval of Warrant Register Dated 
January 25, 2024 to the  Consent Agenda;  Commissioner Moak seconded.  With no further 
discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 

MOTION:  Commissioner Hohenberg moved to approve the amended Consent Agenda presented;  
Commissioner Moak seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 
3:0. 

https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/


PORT OF KENNEWICK   FEBRUARY 13, 2024 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 2 of 4 

 

REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS  
A. Vista Field Southern Gateway Project 

Mr. Peterson reported that the Vista Field Southern Gateway project is out for bid and bids are due 
March 5, 2024 and will be presented to the Commission on March 12, 2024.  The project is funded 
solely by a Benton County Commission allocation of $3,410,000 of Rural Community Capital 
Funds (RCCF).  Mr. Peterson stated the base bid includes two alternates:  a second bathroom and 
the 8-foot metal airplane artwork. 
 
Commission and staff discussed the bidding process and the potential pricing for the alternates.   
  

B. Kennewick Waterfront 
1. Stage Update 

Mr. Kooiker reported that the stage is scheduled for completion on February 28, 2024 (Exhibit 
A).  There has been a lot of staff planning for the arrival of the stage and Mr. Kooiker stated 
the stage will be delivered soon and stored.  In May, hotel staff and Port staff will receive 
training.  Mr. Kooiker is working on the licensing and insurance portion, while Mr. Peterson 
is working on the site preparation.  
 
Mr. Peterson stated the portable stage is 32 feet long by 8 feet wide, and opens up to a 32x24 
stage and is 23 feet high with a light rigging.  The stage needs supporting groundwork and we 
are working with local contractors to install a concrete slab for the foundation.    
 
Commissioner Moak inquired if the Port can move the stage to Vista Field for temporary use.   
 
Mr. Peterson stated yes, the Port is installing a goose neck hitch on one of the Port trucks.   
 

2. WineVit Update 
Ms. Bader Inglima stated the Port had a promotion booth at the Annual WineVit event last 
week and outlined the additional advertising for the event.  Ms. Bader Inglima stated the 
conference was very well attended by industry attendees and vendors (Exhibit B).    
 
Ms. Hanchette thanked Mr. Phongsa for working the booth and he made a lot of good contacts 
for the Port to follow up with.  The Port was an advertising sponsor for the State of the Industry 
luncheon and Ms. Hanchette was part of the flash talk, where she talked about Columbia 
Gardens, and focused on the available parcels for sale, and the access to the City of 
Kennewick’s affluent treatment system, which was installed as part of a partnership.      
 

C. Governor’s Smart Communities Award 
Ms. Bader Inglima shared that the Port received the Governor’s Smart Partnership award for the 
1135 Clover Island restoration project.  John Snyder from the Governor’s office will be presenting 
the award on March 12, 2024 at 11:30 a.m. at the lighthouse plaza along with our partners:  
Confederative Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation, US Army Corps of Engineers, the 
Washington State RCO, Benton County, and the City of Kennewick (Exhibit C). 
 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   FEBRUARY 13, 2024 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 3 of 4 

 

D. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 
Commissioners reported on their respective committee meetings.  
 

E. Non-Scheduled Items   
Mr. Kooiker stated the two-year financial and accountability audit process has been completed and 
the Port had our exit interview last week.  Ms. Bader Inglima sent out a press release indicating 
the Port has had 28 years of clean audits.  Mr. Kooiker stated the Port remains transparent. 
 
Ms. Bader Inglima added she received an email from the Tri City Herald prior to the press release 
offering congratulations to the Port for a clean audit.   
 
Mr. Peterson reminisced on the history of Clover Island and stated prior to 2009, the improvements 
we see today did not exist.  Mr. Peterson stated the improvements are about partnerships and 
people.      
 
Mr. Arntzen walked around the lighthouse this morning and was pleased to see a lot of vehicles 
already in the parking lot.  The island is accessible to everyone, and Mr. Arntzen enjoys seeing the 
dog walkers and others enjoying the amenities.  
 
Mr. Arntzen stated in December 2023, staff presented a revised collaboration design process and 
asked for Commission comments and revisions.  Commissioner Moak had comments and with his 
permission, Mr. Arntzen wanted to discuss them and bring back any proposed additions to the 
policy.  Mr. Arntzen appreciates Commissioner Moak’s review and believes it will make the 
document better and would like to share it at the next Commission Meeting. 
 
Commissioner Moak stated staff did a good job presenting the proposal in December and the 
collaboration design process worked great for the proposal.  Commissioner Moak stated the next 
proposal could require additional pieces for review and wanted the process to take into 
consideration what the best way is to ensure the Commission gets the information needed to make 
a decision. Commissioner Moak stated Commissioner Novakovich made a comment in December 
that the Commission does not want staff to tell us what to do.  Commissioner Moak thinks it is 
important to make two motions for the proposal to remain transparent with the public.  
Commissioner Moak appreciated working with Mr. Arntzen and staff and stated a few 
enhancements to the document will make the job easier for the Commission.   
 
Commissioner Novakovich asked for the collaboration design process revisions to be placed on 
the Agenda for the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Arntzen will work with Commissioner Moak and stated the intention is to present the revisions 
at the next Meeting and take additional comments from the Commission and then make any 
necessary revisions and submit the second draft to the Commission at a later date. 
 
Commissioner Moak appreciates Mr. Peterson’s comments regarding the history of Clover Island 
and stated so much has happened in 15 years.  The lighthouse hasn’t been there that long, but it is 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   FEBRUARY 13, 2024 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 4 of 4 

 

now engrained in the community, and you can see that by all of the pictures that have been taken 
and the weddings that have been held. The Port had a lot of help enhancing the island, with 
assistance from our partners, contractors, and the community. Commissioner Moak appreciates 
when we have an opportunity to be reminded what this Port has done in terms of its stewardship 
of creating an environment that allows us to celebrate on March 12, 2024.  
 
Commissioner Novakovich congratulated Mr. Kooiker and staff on another year of clean audits 
and stated the Port will continue to remain transparent.  Commissioner Novakovich congratulated 
the Commission for setting a transparent environment.       
 
Commissioner Novakovich commented on the history of the island and recalls when Peter 
Batchelor toured our open spaces and stated the community turned its back to the river.  The river 
is the greatest asset we could have, and the Port has done a great job of bringing back the magic of 
the river.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
No comments were made.  
 
COMMISSION COMMENTS   
No comments were made. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
With no further business to bring before the Board; the meeting was adjourned 2:47 p.m.  
 
 
APPROVED: PORT of KENNEWICK 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
  

      
 
Skip Novakovich, President 
 
 
 
 

       
 
Kenneth Hohenberg, Vice President 
 

 
 

 
      

  
Thomas Moak, Secretary 

 



Clover Island Mobile Stage

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



Columbia Gardens 
Marketing Brochure 

&  Postcard

EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B





March 12, 2024
11:30 a.m. 

Lighthouse Plaza





     AGENDA REPORT  
 
TO:  Port Commission 
  
FROM:   Tim Arntzen  
    
MEETING DATE:  February 27, 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Amendments to the Guidelines for Vista Field development proposals  
(aka:  Collaborative Design Process) Follow Up 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I. REFERENCE(S):  

1. Resolution 2024-03 and Exhibit “A”, clarifying amendments to the Guidelines for Vista 
Field development proposals (aka:  Collaborative Design Process) 

2. Resolution 2022-27, Guidelines for Vista Field Development Proposals 
 
II. FINANCIAL IMPACT:    N/A 
 
III. DISCUSSION:   
 

In the December 12, 2023 Commission meeting, staff presented the Letter of Intent (LOI) 
for the Akula Group.  The LOI included a report from staff on the Collaborative Design 
Process (CDP), a process that each proposer participates in with the port team.  At the 
December meeting, Commissioners provided brief comments regarding the reporting of the 
process by staff to the Commission.  Commissioner Moak forwarded written comments to 
me and I shared those comments with staff and legal counsel for review and comment.  
Commissioner Moak and I have discussed the input from staff and legal counsel, and staff 
proposes to include those observations into the CDP reporting.  At today’s meeting, I would 
like to share Commissioner Moak’s comments with the full Commission for review.  
Commissioner Moak has agreed to join me in presenting this topic to the Commission.   
 
It is interesting to note that an actual LOI is included in the commission packet for this 
meeting.  And, at the staff level, we have incorporated Commissioner Moak’s comments into 
our reporting of the CDP related to this LOI. 
 
Therefore, the Commission will be reviewing the changes Commissioner Moak suggested, 
and later in this meeting, the Commission will have the benefit of seeing how the comments 
fold into a current LOI (essentially a “live-fire drill” for the Commission).   

 



IV. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION: 
 
Motion:   I move to approve Resolution 2024-03 amending the 
Collaborative Design Process as described in the agenda report and as 
shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto.  I further move that the Port of 
Kennewick Board of Commissioners hereby ratify and approve all action 
by port officers and employees in furtherance hereof; and authorize the 
Port Chief Executive Officer to take all action necessary in furtherance 
hereof. 

 
 
  



PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

RESOLUTION No. 2024-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK APPROVING CLARIFIYING 

AMENDMENTS TO THE GUIDELINES FOR VISTA FIELD 
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS (COLLABORATIVE DESIGN PROCESS) 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Resolution 2022-27 approving the Guidelines for Vista Field Development 
proposals [aka: Collaborative Design Process (CDP)] was approved by the Commission on    
September 27, 2022; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission has proposed revisions to the Port's CDP, which guides 
Commission analysis of proposals for development at Vista Field; and 
 
 WHEREAS, staff have reviewed those clarifying revisions and have determined the 
incorporation of the revisions will provide for an enhanced CDP; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed clarifying revisions are related to Section III of the CDP, and are set 
forth in Exhibit "A" hereto. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Board of 
Commissioners hereby approves the revisions as an amendment to the CDP. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Board of Commissioners hereby 
ratify and approve all action by port officers and employees in furtherance hereof; and authorize the Port 
Chief Executive Officer to take all action necessary in furtherance hereof. 
 

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Port of Kennewick on the 27th day of February, 
2024. 

PORT of KENNEWICK 
 BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

 
      By:  _______________________________ 
        

SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President  
      
     By: _______________________________ 

        
KENNETH HOHENBERG, Vice President 

 
      By: _______________________________ 
        

THOMAS MOAK, Secretary  



RESOLUTION No. 2024-03 
EXHIBIT “A” 

Tim 
You asked for some feedback on the information provided related to the Collaborative 
Design Process and the information provided to the Commission. It certainly helped for 
starters that the first larger proposal seemed to hit all the right buttons and was an easy 
call for the Commission. You indicated that not all the proposals we review are going to 
be so cut and dried.  
Commissioner Novakovich mentioned that he did not want to see a recommendation 
from staff on these proposals. Based on that, I believe there should be several drafted 
motions (#1) before the Commission for each proposal: one (such as we had last week) 
that is a motion to approve, one that is a motion to deny, and maybe one that is a 
motion to refer to staff to work with the developer. (There could be a fourth one where 
the Commission tries to amend or provide direction from the Commission table. I’m not 
sure that’s a good thing, but possible.)  Whatever the Commission does, it shouldn’t be 
fumbling around for wording. It makes everyone look bad. And whatever direction that 
comes from the Commission should be clear to staff, the developer, and the public. I 
don’t like trying to create motions on the run. The closer we follow a script, no matter 
what the outcome, the better.  
 
RESPONSE #1 
Yes, this is a promising idea. I have talked with my directors and the suggestion 
is that we draft two motions: one to approve and another to deny.  If denied, the 
Commission could ask staff to work with the developer to further refine the 
proposal. The motion for approval, according to the Collaborative Design Process 
(CDP), adopted by the Commission, grants a 90-day period for port staff and the 
developer to finalize negotiations. Should the Commission grant the developer 
the 90-days, it could also attach directives which would guide negotiations. At the 
conclusion of the 90-day period, the Commission could review the proposal to 
ensure the Commission directives have been adequately addressed.  
 
I come from a background at the City of Kennewick where we were dealing with land 
use issues in a quasi-judicial setting and had to create findings if we were going to 
come up with a different conclusion than staff had. And there were specific legal dos 
and don’ts. (#2) I don’t know that we are in a quasi-judicial setting here, are we? (#3) 
Can the Commission just deny a proposal without specific reasons? (I know we can’t 
discriminate on the basis of age, sex, etc.) (#4) What are the legal requirements? 
 
RESPONSES #2 - 4: 
The Purchase and Sale (PSA) Process and Letter of Intent (LOI) are not bound by 
quasi-judicial requirements. Thus, the Commission could legally reject a proposal 
for any number of reasons. However, for good public policy reasons, it would be 
most appropriate if the Commission identifies objective criteria for a rejection or 
referral back to staff, such as inadequate price, lack of experience in New 
Urbanism, failure to follow master plan or design standards, etc. I know that these 
are not 100% “objective” standards, but they are more solid than rejecting a 
proposal without stating any reasons. And you are correct, the Commission 



would not reject a proposal based on “protected class” criteria, such as race, 
age, sex, etcetera. In addition, transparency in stating the “why’s” would both: (a) 
help staff understand what to bring forward in the future and (b) minimize 
unpredictability, since unpredictability equals risk—and risk can be managed if 
there is some consistency and predictability to the Port’s actions. 
 
A couple potential scenarios 

• The Mayor of Kennewick calls up each Commissioner and says she doesn’t like 
a particular developer or project and says we should turn it down. (#5) Would this 
contact be required to be disclosed? Or the content of the communication? 

• The developer takes each Commissioner separately to Cedars (high cost) or 
Starbucks (low cost) to answer questions or just to get to know us (#6) Would 
this contact, or expenditure be required to be disclosed? Or the content of the 
communication? 

I am thinking it would be helpful (when we don’t have a specific project in front of us) for 
Carolyn to talk about any legal implications of any of this. (#7) How do we keep away 
from lawsuits or potential lawsuits or public records requests that could expose the 
port? What is best practice? What is the law? Are there any other legal-type of issues 
we need to keep in mind? 
 
RESPONSES #5 - 7: 
We would certainly seek to avoid a “serial meeting.”   
MRSC notes: A serial meeting occurs when a majority of members of a governing body have a 
series of smaller gatherings or communications that results in a majority of the body collectively 
taking action even if a majority is never part of any one communication. Such a meeting violates 
the OPMA because it amounts to taking “action” — as defined in RCW 42.30.020(3) — outside an 
open meeting. Serial meetings can occur with or without technology, but the range of 
communication options available nowadays to members of a governing body increases the risk. 
If, for example, the mayor had dinner with the Commission President and talked 
specifics about a development proposal, then met with another Commissioner to 
talk specifics about the same proposal, this would likely be considered a serial 
meeting which is prohibited by law (RCW 42.30.020). If a Commissioner does 
have a meeting with another elected official, such as the mayor, and even if the 
circumstances do not create a serial meeting, port policies should be considered. 
Port policies require the content of the discussion to be shared with the other 
Commissioners in a public meeting, so that all Commissioners are privy to the 
same information (see: Commission Policies, Section 3.9).  This ensures that 
each Commissioner has access to pertinent information. 
 
Several comments about the actual document: 
I would like to see the report from the Town Architect as a separate document (#8) 
rather than his comments included or paraphrased in the document. His focus is on 
certain new urbanism/design issues whereas staff deals with that and more. He may 
have some perspectives that could be different than staff’s (and that’s OK). Staff may 
also want to reiterate points of the Town Architect.  
 
  

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30.020


RESPONSE #8: 
Yes, we will attach a complete, independent review from the Town Architect. 
Please note that the volume of materials attached will be commensurate with 
project site—meaning that a 3,500-square-foot building and a 40,000-square-foot 
five-story building will likely have a different volume of documentation. 
 
It would be nice (not required) in Exhibits (#9) if there were newspaper articles about 
some of their similar projects, such as from a local Business Journal or local paper. The 
developer may have these. Or even internet links to various similar projects of the 
developer.  
 
RESPONSE #9: 
Staff perform basic due diligence when a LOI is received. We can attach all 
information we discover as an attachment. Should the Commission grant the 
proposer the 90-day look-see period, additional due diligence is usually 
performed and this information as well will be attached. We will strive to not 
include innuendo or unverified information. 
 
I like how you have broken the report into sections. 
As I indicated at the Commission meeting, (#10) I would like to see a better map 
showing where the development is related to the broader identifiable VF area.  
 
RESPONSE #10: 
Yes, we will attach a more detailed map. 
 
I guess Section VI: Conclusion and recommendations would go away per Commission 
Novakovich’s suggestion, or at least the recommendation part.  
I wasn’t sure with the last project whether they had worked with either the Port of 
Camas-Washougal or Port of Vancouver or whether that was appropriate to ask. If they 
had, I would have liked to have heard whether those ports had anything to say about 
them. (I would guess it would be favorable.)  
I appreciate your asking the port Commission for feedback. I’m sure if or when we get to 
something more controversial, we may find different needs, but I think your first stab at 
providing information to the Commission was good and generally met our needs and 
was well organized.  
Tom 

 



 
PORT OF KENNEWICK  

 
RESOLUTION 2022-27 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISISONERS 
OF PORT OF KENNEWICK RESCINDING RESOLUTION 2016-23  

AND APPROVING THE AMENDED GUIDELINES FOR  
VISTA FIELD DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick approved Resolution 

2016-23 on September 27, 2016 amending the procedure by which the Port of Kennewick (Port) 
shall provide public notice of Vista Field development opportunities and the process by which 
the Port shall receive, evaluate and accept development proposals; and 

 
WHEREAS, the collaborative design process within the Guidelines needs to be amended 

to simplify the process and attract investors; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission shall continue to evaluate the effectiveness of this policy 

over time and reserves the right to expand, amend or rescind this policy as appropriate. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Port of Kennewick hereby rescinds Resolution 2016-23. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Port of 

Kennewick hereby approves and adopts the amended Guidelines for Vista Field Development 
Proposals as attached in Exhibit A, and directs the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to take all 
action necessary to implement these procedures.   
 

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick this 27th day of 
September, 2022. 

 
 PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

By: _____________________________ 
   

SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President 
 
 
 By: _____________________________ 

 
KENNETH HOHENBERG, Vice President 

 
 
 By:  _____________________________ 
 
 THOMAS MOAK, Secretary  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C04EE7D1-565E-4D66-B3C5-8599B91DAE99



  

N:\COMMISSION MEETINGS\2022\Resolutions 
Page 1 of 3  

PORT OF KENNEWICK 

GUIDELINES FOR VISTA FIELD DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS 

 
These guidelines identify the procedure by which the Port of Kennewick (Port) shall receive, evaluate and 
accept development proposals.  

 
I. NOTICE OF DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

 
The Port will prepare project information including a description of development-ready site(s); and notify 
the public of site availability by various methods as appropriate, including making direct contact with 
potential builders.   

 
II. RECEIPT OF DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS 

 
A builder wishing to develop available Vista Field property shall submit a Letter of Intent (LOI) 
describing the builder's experience and the proposed development concept for the site as described in the 
Proposal Submission Checklist (Attachment “A”).  

 
III. EVALUATION OF DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS 

 
LOIs will be reviewed by the Port CEO. If the LOI demonstrates that the builder possesses the relevant 
experience, that the development concept is likely to assist with the redevelopment of the property and 
that the price and terms are reasonable, then the CEO will arrange for the parties to participate in a 
preliminary collaborative design process described below. 

 
A. Preliminary Collaborative Design Process. The Port and builder (working through each party' s 

design team) shall meet to refine the development concept described in the LOI.  This meeting may 
be by telephone conference or other preliminary discussion. The preliminary collaborative design 
process shall consist of: 

 
1. Initial project development concept will be reviewed. The parties will endeavor to produce 

rough project sketches and assemble photographs and other illustrative materials. 
 
2. Upon successful completion of the initial meeting, a design meeting will be conducted 

whereby the parties will refine the development concept and the rough sketches in order for 
the builder to produce a schematic design mutually acceptable to the parties. 

B. Initial Evaluation by Port Commission. Upon successful completion of the preliminary 
collaborative design process, the CEO shall present all relevant project information to the Port 
Commission for evaluation.  The Port Commission may take any action deemed appropriate with 
respect to proposal evaluation, including but not limited to requesting the parties to further refine 
the proposal through final design. In this case, the Port Commission shall grant the builder 
exclusive negotiating rights with respect to the proposal and site for a period of 90 days.  During 
the exclusive negotiating period, the Port will not accept any other proposal for the site.  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C04EE7D1-565E-4D66-B3C5-8599B91DAE99



  

N:\COMMISSION MEETINGS\2022\Resolutions 
Page 2 of 3  

 
C. Final Collaborative Design Process. Provided the parties enter into the final collaborative design 

process, the builder, at its expense, shall produce of a set of drawings acceptable to the Port 
including site and representative floor plans with elevations for the major elements of the 
project. Schematic drawings shall also include exterior sections reflecting proposed architectural 
design and building materials.  Emphasis will be placed on exteriors and especially, elevations 
facing streets and public spaces. The plans shall include a conceptual site plan which should 
include a sample or conceptual planting plan for site vegetation. Additionally, the builder shall 
describe the proposed schedule of development.  Any contingencies that may affect this timeline 
shall be identified by builder. The Port may request additional project information. 

 
D. Final Presentation to Port Commission. Upon successful completion of the final collaborative 

design process, the CEO shall report to the Port Commission related to the overall progress of 
the project, including a staff recommendation related to the project.  The Port Commission shall 
either reject the development proposal or direct the CEO to negotiate a purchase and sale 
agreement (or ground lease) with the builder. If the parties are unable to execute a purchase and 
sale agreement within 60 days, the proposal shall expire, and each party shall be relieved of all 
further obligations related to the proposed development. 

 
IV. POST PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT MATTERS 

 
A. Project Refinement. Upon execution of a purchase and sale agreement, the builder shall apply 

to the City of Kennewick (City) for project review and permitting.  Should the City require 
changes to the project which materially alters the project, the parties will then attempt to 
negotiate the changes required in order for the builder to receive City approval of its project. If 
the parties are unable to negotiate changes required in order for the builder to receive City 
approval within a 60 days, the development proposal shall expire, each party shall be relieved of 
all further obligations.   Any earnest money deposited by the builder shall be refunded to the 
builder, less any applicable administrative fee. 

 
B. Construction Progress. The Port will monitor construction and provide periodic updates to the 

Port Commission. 
 
V. MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS 

 
A. All discussions between the parties are to explore the builder's qualifications and the viability of a 

development proposal. A binding obligation shall only be created by a written agreement setting 
forth all material terms, signed by the parties; and approved by an affirmative vote by the Port 
Commission; 

 
B. The Port may arrange for further action including introducing the concept to the Port Commission 

or appropriate third parties in order to perform due diligence and the parties understand that 
complete confidentiality cannot be guaranteed; 

 
C. Each party shall be responsible for all costs it incurs with respect to this matter, including 

professional and attorney's fees and costs; 
D. The Port makes no representations with respect to the property and the builder agrees to exercise all 

due diligence it deems necessary; 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C04EE7D1-565E-4D66-B3C5-8599B91DAE99



  

N:\COMMISSION MEETINGS\2022\Resolutions 
Page 3 of 3  

E. Development proposals may be subject to disclosure under the Washington State Public Records 
Act; 

 
F. The Port reserves the right to verify builder credentials and to request supplemental information; 

and 
 
G. The Port Commission may waive any of these requirements for builders where the total project 

value, including land price, is expected to be less than $1,500,000. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C04EE7D1-565E-4D66-B3C5-8599B91DAE99













































VISTA 
FIELD 

Phase #1, Lot 15

Kuki Izakaya 
Restaurant

(Yoori Nah & 
Bumki Hong)

Grandridge Blvd

Coliseum

Vista Field Blvd

Deschutes Ave



MOTION TO APPROVE: 

I move approval of Resolu�on 2024-04 authorizing a ‘90 Day Right to  
Nego�ate’ �me-period with Kuki Iszakaya for construc�on of a 3,513 
square foot, single story building on Lot 15 within the first phase of Vista 
Field redevelopment. And, I direct the CEO to address the following 
maters (if any): 

1. __________________________
2. __________________________
3. __________________________

MOTION TO DENY: 

I move to approve Resolu�on 2024-04 rejec�ng a  ‘90 Day Right to  
Nego�ate’ �me-period with Kuki Iszakaya for construc�on of a 3,513 
square foot, single story building on Lot 15 within the first phase of Vista 
Field redevelopment for the following reason:  ____________________ 

__________________________________________________________ 



PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK TO 

APPROVE A 90 DAY RIGHT TO NEGOTIATE PERIOD  
WITH KUKI ISZAKAYA 

 
WHEREAS, the Port of Kennewick (“Port) Commission has authorized port staff to 

market parcels for sale within the Vista Field redevelopment project; and  
 

WHEREAS, port staff has received a proposal from Kuki Iszakaya for construction of a 
3,513 square foot, single story building on Lot 15 for the purpose of operating an upscale Japanese 
dining experience, within the first phase of Vista Field redevelopment; and  
 

WHEREAS, the proposal has received preliminary staff, legal and design review related 
to the Vista Field master plan and Collaborative Design Process. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Board of 
Commissioners hereby approves a ‘90 Day Right to Negotiate’ time-period with Kuki Iszakaya 
for construction of a single story building on Lot 15 within the first phase of Vista Field 
redevelopment.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Board of Commissioners 

hereby ratify and approve all action by port officers and employees in furtherance hereof; and 
authorize the Port Chief Executive Officer to take all action necessary in furtherance hereof. 

  
ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Port of Kennewick on the 27th day of 

February, 2024. 
PORT of KENNEWICK 

 BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
 

      By:  _______________________________ 
        

SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President  
      
     By: _______________________________ 

        
KENNETH HOHENBERG, Vice President 

 
      By: _______________________________ 
        

THOMAS MOAK, Secretary 
 
 





     AGENDA REPORT  
 
TO:  Port Commission 
  
FROM:   Larry Peterson 
    
MEETING DATE:  February 27, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM:  Oak Street 1628 E. 3rd Ave. – Suggested Course of Action Options 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I. REFERENCE(S):  

1. Resolution 2024-02  
2. Diagram of Oak Street Industrial Park 

 
II. FINANCIAL IMPACT:    Unknown 
 
III. DISCUSSION:   
 
The Port purchased the 13,233sf warehouse building at 1628 E. 3rd Ave. in the Port’s Oak Street 
Industrial Park in October 2001.  The Port has utilized a few of the 24ft x 50ft bays as storage for 
Port maintenance equipment and leased the remaining space to either individual businesses or as 
overflow for tenants in the larger Oak Street Development Buildings 1 and 2.  The building was 
actually constructed in two phases with the center 5,400sf warehouse [Bays 6-8] and attached 
864sf office being the original building and a 1993 addition added 4,800sf of warehouse to the 
north [Bays 2-5], 1,800sf warehouse to the south [Bay 9] and a 369 sf office attached to Bay 9.  
{not sure about the numbering and why there is no Bay 1} 
 
 
APRIL 2023 FIRE & INSURANCE RESPONSE  
The building suffered fire damage in April 2023 and work with the Port’s insurance carrier 
identified two options. [cause of fire within Bay 9 leased to a welding company was not 
established} First option was receiving a lump sum payment of $477,000+ and accepting the 
condition of the building As-Is.  The second option involved the insurance company funding the 
rebuilding of the structure to the pre-fire condition.  On January 9, 2024, the Commission passed 
Resolution 2024-02 which opted to follow the route of the insurance funded rebuild.   
 
Immediately following that decision, the Port engaged the services of David Robison of Strategic 
Construction Management (SCM) to assist in completing the rebuild task.  SCM initiated 
discussions with City Building & Fire department officials and made outreach to various 
contractors to identify the best path forward.  Although City officials would permit 



reconstruction to a pre-fire condition, concern about application of current life health & safety 
codes and the associated costs and/or the wisdom of lobbying against incorporating suggested 
life, health & safety upgrades lead to a bigger policy question. 
 
The Port is in the “driver’s seat” and can pivot as new information is discovered. 
 
Does the warehouse consisting of pole barn type construction with no heating or cooling 
system or fire suppression system belong in the Port’s portfolio long-term? 
 
Is it wise to rebuild a structure lacking key life, health & safety elements and does lobbying 
against inclusion of these life, health & safety elements open the Port to future liability 
when another fire incident occurs?   
 
 
RECONSIDERING COURSE OF ACTION  
Once these bigger questions arose SCM and Port staff discussed implications of various 
scenarios ranging from partial to complete demolition of the structure.  Cost, future use, 
permitting process and timing questions were discussed.  SCM then discussed these various 
scenarios with contractors, design professionals and City Building & Fire personnel.  Initial 
responses and “loose” estimates from the contractors indicated this option merits further 
consideration. 
 
Working backwards from the presumption of the $477,000 “cash-out” and using rough 
demolition cost estimates yielded a scenario which results in a beneficial use for the Port, 
remains within the available insurance proceeds and doesn’t require deviations from current life, 
health & safety regulations.   This scenario is depicted in the attached drawings. 
 
PARTIAL DEMO SCENARIO involves 
Retaining Bays 2-5 (1993 construction) 
Demolish Bays 6-9 and abutting office space; 
Add exterior siding & support to southern end of Bay 5; 
Retain demo area slab and add chain link fence to create “enhanced bullpens”; 
Provide bathrooms - either placement of affordable pre-fabricated bathroom or making 
upgrades to existing bathroom in the adjacent 1,100sf Port office building. 
 
Only Port maintenance team utilizes the revised building, which significantly reduces the risk 
as activities can be controlled. 
 
If this scenario is selected the Port would have to coordinate the 60-day lease termination 
notification with the two (2) remaining tenants.  This period could run parallel to the permitting 
and bidding process, which would allow these two welding businesses additional time to secure 
alternative locations. 
 
 
IV. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION:   
 
Commission discussion and staff direction. 
 



9
6

45
7

3
8

2

February 16, 2024

EXISTING

FIRE 
DAMAGED/
IMPACTED



9
6

45
7

3
8

2

Concrete Slab
w/Chain Link Fencing

DEMOLISH

Retain Existing Electrical 
Services to Bays 2-5

Retain Existing Electrical 
Service to Bay 6 for 

Exterior Power/Lighting 
Network

February 16, 2024

Retain/Demo

Potential Bathroom Location & 
Utility Extensions

S.S. H2O

340LF 6-Ft Chain Link Fence 
with {tbd} number of gates

New Exterior Skin & Some 
Framing & Man Doors

Retain


	2022-27 AMENDED Vista Field Development Guidelines EXECUTED.pdf
	2022-27 Amending 2016-23 Amended Vista Field Development Guidelines NO TRACK CHANGES.pdf
	PORT OF KENNEWICK
	I. NOTICE OF DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES
	II. RECEIPT OF DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS
	III. EVALUATION OF DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS
	IV. POST PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT MATTERS
	V. MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS



	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



